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Dear Attorney Geveral Opinion Committee:

Pursuant 10 Section 402.042(b)(6) of the Texas Government Code, Texas Southern |
University would like to request an Attorney Gengral Opinion regarding the above subject, More

particuldrly, we would tike an opinion regarding the appropriate tite of pay foravsrugd butunsed
vacation leaye when these employees separates from thelr academic administrativa positions,

Our request for an -opinion is based primarily on the following hypothetical fact scenario:

Professor X (9-month appointment) takes on an administrative position in
addition to her teaching duties in 2002. The administeative position. pays
$20,000/yx. in addition 1o her existiop toaching salary of $60,000/vr. After three
years, Professor X separates from the administrative duties to focus salely on
teaching and ieverts back to her $60,000 armual salary,

Thereafter, Prafessor X takes on administrafive positions similar to year 2002 in
2007-2008 and 2012-2013 on an interim hesis in addition to her teacking dufies.
Such intetim adrministrative positions were for different rates of pay. Starting in
2014, Professor X no longer has auy administrative ditiesand solely contlmems in
her.capacity as a S-month professor. '

In 2019, the University and Professor X want a payout of her acerued yet umumed
vagation leave, '



ISSUES PRESENTED

1. a.) Must a university remunerate a faculty member for accrued and unused vacation
houts who separates from adminisirative duty as a holistic sum (i.e., the faculty pay and
administrative pay as one sum); of

b.) Must a university remunerate a faculty member for accrued and unused vacation
hours based only upon the additional salary paid for the administrative position.

2. - Inascenario wherein a professor does not want to be paid for accrued and unused vacation
at the time of separation from administrative duties, when is the appropriate time for a
university to provide the payout?

LAW, CONSIDERATIONS, AND BRIEF

Section 661.152(a) of the Texas Government Code (“TGC”) provides in pertinent part that -
a state employee is entitled to vacation in each fiscal year, except for a state employee who is an
employee of an institution of higher education and is “not employed to work at east 20 hours a
week for a period of at least four and a half months™ or is a “faculty member employed for a period
of fewer than 12 months.” TSU’s Provost, Deans, Associate Deans, Department Chairs, etc. are
state employees who are employed full time for 12 months each fiscal year. Accordingly, such
administrative positions are entitled to vacation leave.

Section 661.152(d) of the TGC further provides that eligible state employees accrue
vacation leave and may carry over vacation leave from one fiscal year to the next. TSU’s policy
mirrors the TGC in that regular staff employees and faculty on a 12-month appointment are entitled
to paid vacation each fiscal year.

PAYMENT FOR ACCRUED BUT UNUSED VACATION LEAVE

Section 661.062(a) of the Code provides in part that a “state employee who, at any time
during the employee’s lifetime, has accrued six months of continuous state employment and who
resigns, is dismissed, or otherwise separates from state employment by an institution of higher
education is entitled to be paid for the accrued balance of the employee’s vacation time as of the
date of separation.” Sub-section (b) [2] clarified that “separation from state employment” for
vacation leave payment purposes includes moving from a position that accrued vacation leave to
a position that does not accrue vacation leave. For example, a Department Head might resign as a
Department Head and continue teaching for a nine (9) month faculty position. Section 661.063(a)
of the TGC provides that the payment for the accrued balance of vacation leave is computed by
multiplying the employee’s rate of compensation on the date of separation from the vacation
accruing position by the total number of accrued but unused vacation leave hours. ~

Furthermore, the TGC details that separation from employment includes an employee who
“holds two or more positions, and separates from one that accrues vacation time, if the agency




agrees to pay for the accrued balance of the employee’s vacation time.” This further complicates
the matter for our Administrative Faculty members as whether they have two positions or one
position with additional responsibilities. The matter is essential as the computation of vacation
time could be for just the additional salary paid the faculty member or for the entire salary of the
faculty member for both teaching duty and administrative duty as a whole.

In conclusion, the issues we are requesting Attorney General’s Opinion are as follows:

1. a.) Must a university remunerate a faculty member for accrued and wnused vacation
hours who separates from administrative duty as a holistic sum (i.e., the faculty pay and
administrative pay as one sum}; ot :

b.) Must a university remunerate a faculty member for accrued and unused vacation
hours based only upon the additional salary paid for the administrative position.

2. In a scenario wherein a professor does not want to be paid for accrued and unused vacation
at the time of separation from administrative duties, when is the appropriate time for a
university to provide the payout?

. Austin Af/Ifane
President, Té¢xas Southern University




